
 

 
 

Leven River Parks 
 

 
Community Hub 
 
Tender Questions and Answers 
 

1. It is noted that there are development costs available for each of the tenders.  When 
considering fee proposals, do these costs include for VAT, and are there any associated 
development costs we need to be made aware of? For example, the Community Hub Project 
notes development costs are available up to £90k but does this include for other consultants/ 
costs/ surveys to be procured out with this procurement exercise? 
 
Fee proposals should exclude VAT, the maximum values stated in the tenders are for costs ex 
VAT.  
 
The maximum funding available for each project is set out in each tender, and we are asking 
submitters to set out their methodology for developing the projects and include all fees that 
they will need to deliver the outputs. We will not be procuring the services of other 
consultants, surveyors etc, unless otherwise stated, and expect the successful consultant to 
sub-contract any external support they need directly. We do not need to be included in that 
procurement process. I hope that makes sense.  
 

2. Can you clarify the extent of services? Specifically, the brief notes services in 1.1 that partial 
services in Stage 4 will be required, 3.1 notes that services will be taken up to Stage 3 and 4 
as per Plan of Work 2020. Further your service breakdown has a Technical Design and Bill of 
Quantities (ordinarily Stage 4) down in 3.1.5, before the Feasibility and Concept Report 
(ordinarily Stage 2) which is in 3.1.6 and makes reference to the final report. We would 
ordinarily prepare a Stage 2 (Feasibility Report) with QS costs at the end of Stage 2, with 
technical designs and a Bill of Quantities at Stage 4. Would it be correct to assume that you 
require full design team services up to the point where tender information (and the Stage 4 
Report) is prepared during RIBA Stage 4, with an interim Feasibility Report at RIBA Stage 2? 
 
Apologies for the confusion – this is mainly because the funders want us to get as far to full 
RIBA Stage 4 as possible, but we had originally only allowed a budget we thought would get 
us to RIBA Stage 3. We are not sure how far down the road to Stage 4 the budget and 
timeframe will allow, so have tried to be vague enough to allow submitters to say how far they 
can go. The numbering error you point out I likely to be down to me making some copy and 
paste errors whilst trying to get the brief completed and out on time.  
 
I can confirm that we would like full design team services to produce an Interim Feasibility 
Report at RIBA stage 2, followed by a Stage 4 report and tender information. If the budget 
and timeframe is completely unfeasible, we will discuss with the funders if they will accept a 
reduction in scope back to Stage 3.  
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3. In addition, no reference is made to statutory permissions; we assume these are to be included 

within our services? 
 
Please allow for these – we are working with the main agencies (Fife Council, NatureScot, 
SEPA and HES) through the project and are trying to determine what will actually be needed 
ourselves, but have yet to have confirmation for anything other than planning. We’d prefer to 
be prepared for all and not have to go for some.  
 

4. Do you envisage this project to include solely the hub building at the delivery value of 
£350,000? Or is this budget also to include upgrades to parking, soft landscaping etc.? 
 
This is solely the hub building, and the £350,000 is purely an indicative figure at the moment 
used for the Lottery grant application. Additional facilities and landscaping have other budgets 
for delivery. However, we would be supportive of the designs including integrated features 
(e.g. raingardens) even if the delivery is funded from another pot.  
 

5. Is it known if there are services on, or close to, site currently? 
 
There will be as the site was previously and industrial site. We currently have a services check 
in and the results will be provided to the successful consultant.  
 

6. Are costs for external surveys (eg. topographical surveys, contamination report, flood risk 
assessments to be included) to be included within our fee? 
 
Please include for topo surveys and a contamination report. We are securing some topo 
surveys though the other projects but they are unlikely to cover all the “creosote” site. Fife 
Council have also been undertaking some winter ground water investigations for the site, but 
again whilst these will be made available as soon as they are ready, are not likely to provide 
all the information needed.  We are commissioning a FRA for the full project area this week, 
and again the results will be available to the successful consultant. Any other site surveys and 
reports that are available will also be provided. These include a feasibility study for river 
restoration opportunities, ecological surveys.  

 
7. Can you please clarify how much of the £90k budget for development costs is for design team 

fees and does this include VAT. 
 

This is all for design, how you divide up the fees is up to your project team. The £90k is ex 
VAT. 
 

8. The brief requests detail design up to RIBA Stage 3/4 – we are assuming this is not up to full 
production drawings / tender action and the development of key details only. 
 
We would like to get as far down the road to full Stage 4 outputs as possible, but are aware 
that the budget and timeframe may not allow this. We are asking submitters to let us know 
what is doable within the fees and timeframes available, therefore if tender information can 
be supplied, great. I know this isn’t helpful, but we had intended only to go to the completion 
of Stage 3, the funder has requested Stage 4. If Stage 4 is not possible, we will have an 
opportunity to discuss with the funder if we either increase the budget or reduce scope to 
Stage 3.  
 

9. Can you confirm if a Planning Application will be required, we are assuming a Building Warrant 
will not. 
 



 

 
 
Planning permission will be required, but this will not need to be secured during the design 
work, only if construction funding is secured and that will not be known for at least another 2 
years. 
 

10. Have surveys already been carried out e.g. topographical, site investigation, ecological, 
archaeological. 
 
Some topo and site investigations work is currently being undertaken by the active travel 
routes project and anything available will be provided to the successful consultant. Services 
information is being gathered and an FRA commissioned for the full site. Again, when 
available, the results will be provided. Ecological information is available, archaeological is not 
currently.  
 

11. Can you please clarify the design team make up – we are assuming Architect, Engineer, QS, 
with some basic Landscape Architect / M&E input. Not Principal Designer, ecological, 
hydrological. 
 
Please include for a Principal Designer. Ecological and Hydrological are unlikely to be needed 
due to the existing information available.  

 
12. Can you please advise how much of the £350k contract sum is allocated to maintenance. 

 
None – that is capital funding for construction only. Maintenance mechanisms and costs are 
to be discussed during the design work by the project partners and will be dependent on the 
final structure, facilities and management structure. 

 
13. On p.8 of the brief, should item 3.15 be renumbered as 3.17 as the text seems to describe 

RIBA Stage 4 
 
Yes, apologies it’s a cut and paste typo. 
 
If so, can a new 3.15 description be provided which equates to RIBA Stage 3 Spatial Co-
ordination? 
 
Please add this in if you require it.  

 
14. Similarly, on the Fee Submission table should the last workstage (RIBA Stage 4) be listed as 

3.17, rather than repeating 3.15?  And Should 3.15 be renamed at Spatial Co-ordination to 
align with RIBA Workstage descriptions? 
 
As above, this is a cut and paste / format typo, please assume the numbering you describe. 
 

15. P4. Of the brief states : We would like tender submissions to include information and ideas on the 
types of structures that the community hub could be, and some of the opportunities you see for 
innovation and multifunctionality for the space. Can you confirm if this means you are looking 
for bidders to provide some sketch proposals as part of the bid? 
 
No, some text descriptions of thoughts / a narrative of ideas or opportunities is sufficient.  

 
16. Does the £350,000 budget cover all works or just the community hub? 

 
Just the community hub, and it is indicative at this stage only.  



 

 
17. What do you mean by ‘structure’ is this a shell to be fitted out later by others? 

 
We have used the word “structure” as we have no preconceived idea of what it will be. It 
could be as simple as a shipping container, or as complex as a large visitor centre. We would 
like to be kitted out as much as the budget will allow, but appreciate that other funding may 
need to be secured for that, and it may be done later by others.   
 

18. Value of the works has been noted as in the region of £350,000 (excluding VAT) – with the 
works to be completed by Dec 2027.  Will the value of the works be adjusted in line with 
inflation over the next four years? 
 
Yes – this was an indicative figure for the purposes of the development grant. The outcome 
of this design work will dictate the final figure, and we will include an inflationary 
adjustment. 
 

19. Evidence of company track record of in providing similar services / references for similar 
projects – As we are a young practice, would references of similar projects and services 
obtained by working for previous employers be acceptable? 
 
Yes, as long as you can demonstrate that the project team have the relevant track record, 
that will be sufficient. It may be advantageous to highlight the role that team members 
played in examples form previous employers, just to make it clear to the assessors that the 
team do have the skills and experience needed.  

 
20. Previous experience of blue-green networks and nature-based solutions design – is it a 

requirement for the lead Consultant to have this experience or is it acceptable for another of 
the team members to provide this? 
 
As long as a member of the project team has the right skills and experience, that’s fine. We 
are comfortable working with teams pulled together from multiple small agencies.  
 

21. Consultants – Would other professional services required within the Consultants’ team have 
to be sub-contracted to the Consultant or would you consider appointing each consultant 
separately by GATrust? 
 
We would prefer all services to be subcontracted via the lead consultant. That way, you can 
deal with the procurement and use your existing partnerships and frameworks. If GATrust 
were to separately contract all consultants, we would need to go through a competitive 
tender process for each one to satisfy the requirements of the funders. 
  

22. Products Liability – As an architecture practice we don’t carry Products Liability or combined 
public/products insurance, is this a requirement? 
 
In the final contract award, we will adjust insurances to the required level for the project. As 
this is design stage only, products liability could potentially be waivered. You could also 
include the cost of the insurance in your fee submission, should you wish.  

23. Please can you advise if the new railway bridge, shown in the document ‘ Levenmouth active 
travel and river park concept design document, dated September 2021’ , is still planned and 
whether there are any further details on this bridge. We note the importance of the bridge 
giving a connection between the two communities on each side of the new rail link. 

Yes, the bridge is currently being designed by Network Rail. We can provide initial designs 



 

to the successful consultant once permission is received from NR. There is a requirement for 
the bridge to be constructed by April 2024. 

24. Please could you clarify the reference to a budget of £90,000 for development phase work 
and what is to be included within this sum. This will be useful information when we are 
preparing a fee proposal. 

This budget is for design fees up to RIBA Stage 4. 

25. Within section 4.1 it refers to fees including venue hire and publicity material. Is this related 
to the community engagement events? This seems quite open ended for us to price, are you 
able to provide any more information as to what is required please. Normally when we have 
done consultations it is at the clients premises, town hall etc etc  

Yes, this is related to the community engagement events. We have a separate budget to hire 
venues and run the events, so we are requesting that you do not include that in your fees. 
We don’t have premises in the area, but will be hiring community halls or other venues, we 
have secured a separate budget for that, to allow as much of the £90,000 be spent on the 
design as possible.  

26. We understand that the fee proposal is to include all information required to tender the 
works, ie up to and including RIBA stage 4 but to exclude any stage 5 or 6 work on site. 
Please can you clarify if this assumption is correct. 

Yes, this is correct.  

27. Briefing - The brief is very open, and involving RIBA Stage 1 support, with the potential for 
change to brief, budget following initial stages, which is normal at this stage. Are you 
content for us to submit what we believe is a viable alternative scope for this early part of 
the project, building on our understanding of similar projects for similar clients, and how far 
we can take the project for you? 
 
Yes. 

 
28. Briefing - Has there been a business plan developed for the project, or will there be?  

 
Not yet. A business plan will be developed alongside the design process and will be based 
around the emerging designs / community requirements.   
 

29. Budget - Is the project construction budget fixed, or to be determined by the briefing 
exercise and design development? 
 
It is not fixed, just indicative for the purposes of the development funding application. The 
final budget will be determined by the briefing exercise and design development. 

 
30. Site Location - Does the Community Hub have to stay in the Creosote site? For example if 

community comment is that it should be elsewhere in the River Park will that be the driver? 
 
The community have already identified as the Creosote Site being their preferred location 
for the Hub. If this changes, we are open to discussion, but will be limited by factors like 
landownership, accessibility etc.  
 
 
 



 

 
 

31. Community Engagement – Do you need us to either  
a. simply support community engagement led and arranged by the client (As we often 

do) by preparing information, attending consultation meetings and gathering 
responses from these on design options, briefing potential, or  

b. provide more detailed and wide reaching analysis of the community using surveys, 
outreach, specific meetings etc. resulting in formal reporting, project brief, etc.  

 
We are looking for something between the two. Our staff can help with the organisation of 
the events, but as they are intended to be co-design workshops for the Hub, we would 
expect the consultant to co-lead the workshops with our Engagement Officer. We don’t 
anticipate needing detailed analysis via surveys of outreach at this stage.   

 
32. Community Engagement Venues – It is difficult to assess costs of venues in advance, and 

these costs would normally be outwith consultant tenders. Would it be acceptable to 
exclude these costs from the tender? The same may apply to presentation material for these 
pending agreement of the engagement strategy. 
 
We have a separate budget for hiring venues etc, and staff to support with organising the 
events. We are not asking you to include these costs. We have asked you to estimate an 
allowance for printed material etc for the events. We can discuss the use of other budgets 
for anything above that allowance, if necessary, though there is a limit to the funding 
availability.   
 

33. Site investigations Generally– have any been carried out, can these be made available, and is 
there a separate budget for site investigations/do indicative allowances have to be made 
within the tender? 
 
Yes, some have been carried out, and there should be survey info, topo info and a flood risk 
assessment in the coming weeks that will be available to the successful consultant. There is 
not a separate budget for any investigations or survey work required, so we would like you 
to include a small allowance for that as well.  
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